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1956. He taught math in Obio for twenty-eight years before
retiving in 1984. He moved te Avizona and has Langht near Phoe-
nix for the last four years.

Mr ., Jamiesoeon hasg four song and enjovs the Arizona weatbher,

which permiis him te golf year rvound.



CHARLES JAUTESOH

Chatles was born on October 2, 1929, in Youngstown, Ohic.
He was the third of four boys and gvew np in Girard, Ohio. Hig
two older brothers were Navy velterans of World War IT. He gradu-
ated from Girard High School in 1948.

Charles enjisted In 1bhe U.S. Arny, in Septenber of 1948, and

2

went to basice training ail Ftr. Breckinridge, Kenitucky. Following
basic¢ training, Mr. Jamleson was transferred 1o the Eighth Avwy,
in FL. Dvake, Japan.

Mr. Jamieson's unit was among the fivrst to arrive ia  Korea,
following the Communisi invasion in June of 1950. Ile saw combat
action up and down the peningula of Korea, from the Pusan
perimeka: 1o near the ¥Yalu Eiver in the Novih. He was wounded
twice by hand girenades, ihe second time seriousty enouwgh to  keep
him oul of Lhe war.

His combhat recollactions are full of colorful descriptions
aof fighting North Korean and Communist Chinese troops. He also
reflects on the extrveme cold of Rorea's wiuter, a lack of [ood,
gleepr, and bathling opportunities. By thae Ffall of 1950, he was
one of thirty--five wmen left, out of an original uwnit of over two
hundr ed [menl.

After his discharge in 19%2, Charles returned {o the United
Slates, wheie he met and married his wife, Deane. He attended

Youngstown State Universitiy on the ¢.I. Bill and graduated +1in
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T Combat vs. communist troops, routine of
Army life during this time
Juiy 11, 1989
This 1is ain inferview with Charles Jamieson for the

Youngstown Srate Unlvergity Oval Ilistlory Prograwm, by
John Jamieson, at 2498 RBecach Styeet, Gitard, Ohio, on
July 11, 1989, at 4:00 p.m.

Will vou Just give me a little background on swhere
you Jrew up and the family backgr ound?

T grtew up Ln Girard on Hazel Street, basically when I
was vounger. Then, we moved to Chervy Streei. When T
vas in junior high, we moved over to Wilson Avenuse. We
lJived there all the 1ime that 7 was in high school,
until T went into the Army.

You had how many bhreothevs?

I had three brothers, two older and one younger.

The two older ones had service records?

Yes. They were both in World War IT, in the Navy. Ken
had a ship torpedo out from underneath him at about
fifty mileg from England, and Bob was on an LST. He

wasg a radio obperator.

Do vyou think that had anything fo do with vour going
into the gservice?



uiT

CJ:

JdJ

O

JJ:

Well, it wmay have. T think that we all fel:t . ., . T
was rtoo young to ¢o into the Army during World War TI.
You always Tooked up to the sotdiers and sailors dvuring
that time, because that was a very traumatic time in
om. lTives. We alwave had the besgt feelingg about thar,
You weni to Givard High School?

Yeg, 1 did.

Whoen did von graduate Trom Glrard High School?

T graduated in 18438.

After you finizhed high school, did veou go right into
the gervice?

No, T wenl down . . the Chicago Cubs had a DBaschall
Tralining School, and T went thare for part of the
SUnne v T got hungry and came home {launghter)., That

was suppogsed o be for the whole summer, but T ran out
of money. They ot vou a jobh,., but you plaved haseball

evaery night. Basically, T was theres for about ftwo
months., Then, T cams home and worked in the MP for a
while. Things werve slow avound herve. T  Lthought I'd

join the Army, so I enlisted in Sephember of 1948.

You basjcally had a summer afler high school, then vou
enligted?

Right., That fall, [ went into the army.

When vou wenit in, did you have any particular aiea Lhat
you wanted to [be inl?

I enlisted as Aixr Borne. T  was gung ho! {(lTaughter)
Thiat was the Lhing that I enlisted for., When T Fin-
ished my basic iraining, they outlasted me. They wWore
all 1Lied up with the Jump Schoel, and 1 spent Fwo
months in a rveplacenmont depot. That's really noel  Lhe
olaca to be for a while,

Where did you go to bagic [trainipgl?

I went to basic at Canp Breckini idugoe, Kentucky.

How Jlong did basic [training] last?

Basic [traliningl was eight weeksg. That wag Jjust fanda-
mental stuff, Wee Jeoarned basic military courtesy,
driliing, and marching. We were on the rifle randge.

[Wexl went out for a couple of weekend naneuver type
things.
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What was a typical day like? What tinme did vou start?

We staited at about three-thivity tn the morniny.
[We'd] get up and sorvb the barvacks., We would have PT
after that. Then, we'd have breakfast, and we would
start training at about eight o'clock [in the morningl.
We had «lassyoom traising as well as fileld training.
Tt would last until about four-thirty or five o'clogk,
until retreat. We would stand retreat. Basically, we
waere free [thenl. We didn't do wmuch night maneuvers.
What we did was cleaning, more than anything else

(Taughter)

Tu 1948 and 1942, the Cold War started to heat up. Was
there any feeling that yvou had to be ready, because of
the Cold War and things of rhat nature?

There was talk about the Universal Draft Training, and
T didn'L want to be in that. That's anothaer reason why

T enliisted T figured that they were going to diraft
everybody, bul T don't iLhiunk it ever came about. Tt
wag welax time, T don't think there was that much

tension to in, really.

Your drill sevrgeants there, were thev seacson velerans
From World War TT?

think they were in that much combat. We had an old
Firsl Serdgeant thai had been in World War IT, 7  think,
From the beginning. He wag ready (o retirve.

T think [they were from] late World War IT. F don't
d

We get this iwmage of thesa Di'gs as real mean, sadiuseic,
"Lorture you" type qguys. Was that reality?

T deon't think so. T was 1in pretty good conditvrion,
because T just came off of four vearsg 1n high school of
plaving 1in atlhletics. T plaved bageball that suwnmer.
T thought they didn't give you enough.

30, Lt waan't really physically difficuli?

Hao, T den't +think it was. [{Thare wvers] long hours,
T'11 may that. Baslically, for the Fitness pavt of it,
T don't think it was that demaunding or tough.

The nex?t training, did you go to advanced infantry?

Yes, after I waited arouuvd for two or three wonths ito

go to a Jump scheoel, it never came about. 850, they
werae taking orders to go to Germany. I figured,
"Germany wouldn't be ico bhad. T wouldn't mind yoing to
Germany, " s¢ I signed up. They didn't promisce me
Germany,., but they gaid, "Everyhody was going 10
Garmany . " I gol to go to Japan instead. Y7 Jjust
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wanted to get out of the Replacement Depot, because the
food Iines wevre a couple blocks Tong. You would go in
there, and gel "shit on a shingle." Three times a day,
it doesn't go too well.

Wag that at Breckinridye?

Yes. That was al Breckinrlidgs.

So, vou went vight from there to an active duty on
assignment?

from there, T got on a ship from San Francisco and got

sick 1tight outside of San ¥Francisco Ray. We hit a
storm. There was a storm right outgide there. Tor
about a week, I almost starved to death. T'd almost

get up to where they had the chow (food) line. T'd be
down in the hold. It was a iroop ship, the Private
Deya S. Munamore was the name of ii. Tit would be eight
bunks high. You'd be up there, and the light would bhe
Fight in your eyes. That's where vou slepi, on the
bunks. You had to go up about six flights, six  decks,
to get to where the mess hall was. People were sick
all over Tthe place. You'd he aon the Tadder going up,
and you'd be going back and forih. T was go hungry. T
almost got there about four timeg. T got up there, and

they had al?l of the Tood. The perishables [Wwereal]
stacked way inito the mess [hall]l, and I couldn't make
it That's an old story that ! heard on the way over

there. That's how you tell a leookie from a veteran. &
Tookie, he looks at Lhe fFood and up- chucks. a4 veteran,
he just zcrapes it right oul of his plaie and keeps on
aating. (laughtey)

How Tlong was that trip on the boat?

Sixteen days.

You went into Japan direct, with no giops?

Bo., We went right Luio Yokchanma.

What Army were yvou assigned to In Japan?

T was in the Eighth Avany. T was at Camp Drake. Canp
D1 ake was the Japanesge "West Point." I was in the A-
troop, First Sguadron, Seventh Cavalry Regiment, First
Cavalry Division.

Was that FirLst Alv Cavalry later on?

e had mechanized combat boots. We were ground pound-
ars,
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Wag the Eighth Avmy Patton's Rrmy in Europe? Mayhe
T'm wroug.

T don't think [ao] The Geueral we had was Patton's
Second in Command. He had served under Patton. Guner-
al Gay was his Lame

You were in Korea in the spring of 19497
T wag i1 Japan.
What were yvour dutics like there?

When T first got there, we went into anothev little
training period, where we did a lot of training and
went fo the rvifle range and so foith. Then, T had a
couple junfected teeth. My Company weut up to Mt. Fuijl
for about Lwo and one-half gonlbs on maneuvers, ad-
vanced infantry training. T staved behind as & . . .
bhack thera until my jaw healed. Then, I went up
after our company came back. T went up with another
regiment, the ¥FiFth Cavalry Regimeni, so that T could
take this Llraining. While the company was up f[theie],
we'd CQ (charge of guarters) and thiags l1ike that., [We
would] Jjust watch the harvacksz, so nobody stole any-
thing out Ffrom i%.

[Was there] a lot of <¢leaning. stil1?

W

Not rteally, ™ was pretty relaxed, becauase theve
wasu't much to do., We had g sergeant that was Teft
hehind with  us. There were abont Ffive of us Lhat

astaved behind.

You mentioned the vifle range. How wuch time did  you
spend there, and what ¥ind of proficiency. . . 7

We  spent qgquite & bit of 1ime there. This was all
summer Tohg. This is our hasic thing: we would yaet up
in the morning, and we'd do PE (physical exercise). Ve
would do bayonet Ltrainiug for about an hour. Then, we
would lave breakfast. The »18%e range was only about
Five wiles ocut. We would march out to the rifle range.
We'd stay out there for most For the day. We'd fire to
el fect and to he expert rifleman.

Were they still using M-1's then?
Yes. We were using M-1's basically, and that's all T
fired there. We really learned the weapon well. We

learned to break it down completely.

[Did yoeu learn to] do it blindfolded?
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T can’'t remenmber wherher we ever did it blindfolded or
not, but 1t was almest auvtomatic, bang, bang, bang,
bang. We did it so much, that it was automatic. You
could alwmost do it in your sleep. Every Saturday
morning, we would go and maich on the Empercor's Plaza.
Not Emperor's [Plazal], but twice a month it seemed like
that to me, esvecially in the summer time. The whole
Bighth Aray would come aover and have a hblg parade in
front of Macarthur. We would marvch by, aond we had
three companies. We had full T O & & companies, that
was three rifle companies and one weapous company in
each infantry company. There were nine soldiers per
sguad, a sguad leader, assistant sguad leader, and
seven riflemen. I think eac¢h sgquad had a BAR man,
also. There were twenty-seven people per ¥ifle squad,
then thirty-gix total. iThere was] Forty [peoplel,
Includiog the Platoon header, Platoon Sergeant, Assist -
ant Platoon Serdgeant, and the medic. So, the plaioon
was made up of fortyv guys.

You're in Japan Forr about a year and one-~half when
Korea breaks oul.

Yes.

Koiea breaks out +in June of 1950, and vou're still
active over thare?

What happened, T jock-strapped it a Jittle bit. After
I went to Mount Fuji fer . . . we wetre up tThere, and
thaey had tents. We did all kinds of night problems.
(We did] defense, and we would dig fox holes and set up
defensive parametars, We learned all of the different
formalLiong +that we use, the skivmish iine attack. the
diamond Fformation, and now Lo use i1t and when to use
it. We would have lilile problems, and we would have a
litile c¢ritigue affterwards. Tike a sqguad, we would
attack a hill. Then, we would have a c¢ritigque ovel
vhat we did and what we did vight and wrong. We'd have
night problems. We would go out, dig fox holes, and
stay out all night in the fox holes. We did that faor
about two and one-half months straight, with no Sundavys
off or anylhing like tLhat.

You mentioned Jock-atiapping il. What was the deal on
that?

T came back in Wovember. Qur regiment was play-
ing . . . each 7regiment had a Dbaskethall tean. T
Was on our regiment basketball team, which was real
nice. We didn't pull any duty or anvthing, we Just
played baskeitbhall., We had our own barvvacks. All we

did was, we practiced, and then we would ¢go wvplay the
basketbhall ganmes.
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BasketbLall was pretty biyg over there in the wilitary
school.

Yeos, it was. A1l athletics were teally [bigl. Bvery-
body oxcept our Fivst Sergeant Tiked i1t, bhecause we
didn't have to pull any guard duty or anything like
ihat. The First Sergeant I had, Master Sergman Balbeman
was hig name. [ «till temember that, because he was a
regunlar Army . . . he had been 1in rthe A troow, First
Sanadron,  Seventh Cavalry Regimaent for twenty -four
vearas at that time. He would be reading off the list
of names in the morning Ffor rvols call. He would use o
Tighter to see. The lighter would go off, and he would
keen on going and wouldn't misg a name. He knew every -
hody 1iu that outfit! (laughtei) He was a tough old
setrgecant.

We had an  Indlan wiilk us, and we went out and got
drunk. He came in and started doing a war dance arvound
tha room. The Fivst Sevdgeant came out with a hammer in
his hand. He hii him on the head and putb him back in
his reoom. (Taughtlter) We had first class sergeants and
aguad leaders and platoon gergeants, and platooen lead-
ers at that {ime. The Captain was about four years old
[there]. He had bheen with thig . . . for guite a
while.

When Korea does get hot in the summer of 1950, the
Government's reaciion and President Truman's reaction
was veally guite gwift. How soon was it before vou
were transferred lhere?

Mol long. Tt affected us  tveal quick., T was  jock-

strapping 1. T wenbt from Dbasketball, vight into
playing baseball, Agaln, T didn't have any kind of

duty other than playing sports. The Rorean War start-
ed, and that cubts me in the very next day. What they
did, they sent parts of the twenty-fourth division over
o Korea ai that time. They thought that mavbe a show
of American Force would stop the MNorth EKotreans. Then,
what they Jdid, they made up a couple of couwbat battal-
jons. They took all of our WCQ's and made Tirst olass
unitg out of these ontfits. They all had comhal eEpe-
rience, and they sant them over with the twenty -fourth.

This would have heen late June, in 19507
Right. Tt seemed like the 20th of June.

T 1looked the dates up, and the 251h was the invasion
acroas the thirtv-eighth parallel.

Right, Thisz wust have been the lwenty-seventh thatl
they left.
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Because Truman, I think he fook action wilhin two dave.

Right.. When T g¢got bhack to the company, the First
Sergeant was the only non-—combaht [person} that we had
left, aud the Yupply Berygeant. What we did was, we
enptied the warchouse, and T think, T c¢leaned abhout
sizxty vwvoswmoline rifles. HMe and the othev guy were
playing baseball, hecause we gol about ten garbayge
cans, Filleda themnm with sovapy water, and threw the
rifles in. BRut, they were cosmeline. Do yvou know what
cosnoline ig?

That grease stuff?

Yes! You can’'t get that off. The only way to get that
off ds to bodil it with gageline. What we did, we had
about six or eight garbage cans, put fires vunderneath
them, put a Tot ofF scap and water in there, took the
rifles apart, and dumped thewm n there.

Were these new rifleg packed ip that cosmoline?

Yes., We put them all back togekher after wo oleaned
them. It took us all night to ciean them. T got back
to the counpany, asg 1 said. By ithe Fourth of July, we
were on the way to Korea. We went to Yokohama. We had
a trocp ship and hit o Lyphoon right outsgide thers. We
had teo sail around for ahout five days In Lhat thing.
We used LCT's to Iand on, and we Tanded up the coast.

Inchon?

No. This was on the olher side of fthe pepiunsula, iS55
the Japan side of the peninsula. We landed Jn  about
the middle, a 1ittle bhit beiow ithe thirty-eighth paral -
ledl. We went in and set up our pertimeters theve on  an
opposed Tanding. But, T got welt f(rom an unopposed
landing. A couple of motor shells landed nexl to us
and threw water all aver us.

It wag supposaed to he unopposed?

Yes. There was somebody around. They had a mortav, or
gomething that thev wevre throwing at us as we went Iin.
Thery o was no nachine ygun Fiving or anvihing T1lke iLhat,
just a couple of wmortar shells.

You landed and set up a parimeter?

Yag.,

What type of defense against tanks did they have?
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Korea was noil tank country, so vealty, we didn't have
anylhing that. . . . We bhad our rocket launcher fthat
was a 2.36, and they used that against machioe guns and
things like that. They hadn’t used that against any of
the Russian tanks. Korea is a very wountalnous coun -
try. EBEverything else s flooded with vice patiies and
things like that. They technically thought that it
wasn 't Lank country. The only tanks we had were Jit-
t1e, vely  1lighi scouit tanks. So, we really weren't
concernad  about tanks, and neither was anybody else,
nuntit thaey bronght them io, until the North Xoreans
camnme down with them.

The Russian T-34's, T tLhink they were.

3

Yeg, the T-34's . . . T thought there was a T-33 and a
T-34.

What kind of attitude did you have when you saw those
things coming at you?

When we landed, as T zay, the Tfivsl night we shot about
three rthousand rounds of ammunition, and we killed
three cows (in the fField out there. What we did, we
staved there. Then, we came back down this side of
the. . . .

Your went back South?

Yes. We went back gouth, back to Pacegu. Then, fre]
went  on a narrow railroad and went up to . . . . One
regiment was up at Yongamoo, and they got circled at
Yongampe. They goi circled and got cul up preriy good.
S0, we c¢ame back and set up.

Trying to get thelir Flyving gear?

Right. We set up Dbehind them and let them comne
t hrough. That's where the one general from the 124th
[Reginent] was captuved 1 forgel hisg name. We set up

there, and what we did was ti1y to buy time. We set up
on the wmountains, becavsgse there were hills a1l over the
place. We set up there, and we would dig fox holes all
of the way around. Then, the Fivgt night that I saw
tanks, they brought abont fifteen of the T-23's ov -
34's down below the hill and shelled us all night Tong.
You could see the shells coming. It was like a laser
beam shot. We were on the side of the hill. We got
down about knee deep, that evening before this startied,
and we ran into some rock. T kanow a kid that was in
the Ffoxbole with ne. We just thought, "That's deep
enough. We'ite alrighi." [When] that first shell hit,
we were digding like crazy! {laughter) We gort that
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thing down. We dug out boulders, bhelieve me! We
fFinally got about chest deep. T had so much  diri
thrown on me from the shells thatl caune down from thaere
From all Ehat shelliug, we didn't have one guy hurt out
of the whole thing.

How far away were they, do you Lhink?

Wee were on the hill, and they were right down on  the
botiom. They just bombed them [from] rvight down there.
We had these 2.36 rocket launchers thal bounced off of
the tanks. They had nolhing to reaily kaock thewm onut.
What happened {10 our artillery was the gorillas had
infiltrated through, and they had tied up the artil-
Jery. BRBasically, they overran them and caused a lot of
casualties theve, so we didn't have any artillery fire.
What they did, they brought the tanks in straight, and
we were Ttheire Tor about twe or three days. Then, they
started to swing out and go around us on both planks.
[They wetre trying tol <irvcele nus. e wmarched out that
one night.

That's the firvst time T went on a combat patrel, ihat
day, because we had some civilians that were caught in
a rvailroad underpass, a railroad trestle. They woere
caught between our lines. They shelled thewn, and we
shelled Lhemn. What they used was ygorilla warfare.
They would infiltrate with civilians and come through,
so we stopped. They wouldn't let any civilians
through. T went out on a patrol o seec 1f there weale
any soldiers actually in the yroup there. Tt looked
like people would get hik, and they would push the
people  that had not bhoen They would go back under -
neath, push the other people out, and they would gyet
hit There had to be about twoe hundred aiviliang  In
that, Tittle kids and Jlittle bahies. That 1really
brought home the Fact rhat il was a shootiuvg war.

When we got back that night, we Ieft the fow holes. We
left a sguad there to keep . . . 8o thal we would have
things moving around there. 'Phen, we warched out and
want back about forty miles, and did the same thing.

You got there and it was fall. . . .

T the suummeriime 1t was hot, let wme tell vou! Tt was
95 degrees!

Ags  Tall and winter approach, how did that affect the
fighting and the conditions that you were in?

Before that, in the summertime, il was reoally hot! We
wers up on the mountain, and we didn't have any access
to water., You had to realiy watch water control. UWhen
we were retreating, we vetveated all the way back to

10
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the Wakbtong River, and that was by Taegu. We set up a
wesrineler  there, the Waktong Pervimeter. That was in
1950. T First started in the Jast port of August and
the Tirst part of Seplember. We're almost on the way
O .

"y
5

That's all of the way down towavds Pusan,

We had  the whole peninsgula lhere, and woe jusl had a
Titirle c¢ornet alonyg the river. What we d1d then, my
battalioen was a plug battalion. Anvtime we had a
Lreakirhrough, we would o attack it and straighien out

the lines. We'd be in the reserve. We straightened
oul about six or eight places like that one. That's no
fun. Tt's alright to sit in the Ffoxhole and shootl

somehody, but when you have to go out and punch ftham
out of there . . . Tto straighteuw them out, was tough-
ar .

in Septenber , we vare so bad o5 oail that time, that
this is one of the Eirst timesg T gol hit. We had heen
run off of about four ov five hills that night, and
they werse pushing us back. The Japanese call them
bongai, and they used "woasal." They would come
screaming up the hill. Thal was called "bug-out time."
firing this time we had integrated South Rovean paople.
I was a sqgquad leader. T had one American, and the rest
were South  Korean soldiers. Mavbe they had a weelks
training, and yvou had Lo watch them; because if it was
"hut cout time, " whenever they heard anything, they
would 1ake off and run. At that tiwe, Lthev wvere tryiung
o punch a biyg hole througlh wheve we were., Against ow
divigion, T fthink we had seven divigions trying fto
puitelhy throuygbh our division., We had about three divi -
sions against our regimeni at that ime.

Were they unging armor there?

T don'i know what happeuved with armos. T'11 gel To
that a little bit Tater Thay didu't have 1oo nany
tanks lelft, or 1 didn't see any taunks after that. T'71
tell you why in » tTittle bit.

They kepl altlacking us. Ve went to Rovea with a £ull
PO & W Company. That meant [that theie wareae) two
hundred and FfFive guys. We had two machine guns pel
platoon.

Were they H0's?

They were 20's, the Aiv Code 30's. 1| had a gresase Juo.
That was 2 wmachine gun, a 45 calibeir. Tt was so  heavy
and Lt didn't shoolb very Ffar, so T ditvhed that and got
an M-1 after I spenl the ove night on one gide,
ffrom] abour hete to the wall,
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That's ahout 10 feect,

Tan feect, and the Worth Koreans were on ouve side; we
wetre on 1he other side. Then, they would attack over.
Thig was at night time. They would gky¢light them on

the average, shoot thew down. But, ithey rolled hand
grenades  over by the bushel basket Full. The Ffuse on
them would be sparkiing, and youn could see iLhen. Wa

didn't dig fox holes, bhecause 1t they volled in ithe Fox
hole with yvou, you didn't have a chance. So, there was
a time element, too. They kept the pressure on usg all
of the {ime.

You were up against a wall?

e were on a mountain. They were on one glde of irt,
and we were on thbe other side. They would cone over
and, bang, bang, bang. We had about thirty-five guys
in our company, at this time, left.

out of over two hundred?

out of over {wo hundred When T got back, we had been
bunped off of four hills that night. There were nine
guys left when T gol wounded.

Nine oul of two hundied?

Yas.

Wete these casuvallbies?

Yes. Jusl wounded o1 dead. When T got hit with a hand
grenade, T saw it. Tt was aboeut five o'vleck 1in  the
noraing and just starting to get Light. What they did

was throw a bunch of hand grenades over, then they
would attack.

Tf vou wevre busy wilh a hand grenade, voun couldn't
ahoot. back?

No. T saw bthe hand greanade come over, and T {hought it
was golng to roll down the hill. So, T rvaced up to
start shooting, [the habd ¢grenade] hit on a rock and
exploded behind me. T got & lol of fragments +in
my . . . T had a ponchoe on my hack and on my rifle
belt. Tt just Lore that apart. I got a Jloi of splin-
ters in my legs and my butt. T siaved there until thay
weren't attacking too much any wmore. Then, T went to
battalion aid. 1 finally got somebody that got a tag
on me. Then, T went back 1o anetlher battalion. I was
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back there fTor about three dayg. When T came back to
the conpany again, we were forming . . . another compa-
ny had come up out of the Fifth Cavalry Regiment. They
had rvelieved our cowmpany to take over. This 1s  when
the Tnehon thing was going to start.

Thisg iz in the Fall?
Right, this is about gSeptember 15 or somelhing like

that. The narines were going up and around Tnchon. We
were still down. We were really stil11 hard pressed,

because nost of thelr army was down there, yet. They,
thig Pifth Cavalry, had come up and rellieved us, our
COMPDENY . This is while T was in the hospital. They

started Jumping off. They made three-fourths of a
wile. They had five guys left in that company.

out of how many 1o slart?

That was For one day. They had Five guys. I went up
on the hill with mvy sqguad. We had gotten replacements,
and T took my squad up on a hill. There were about
nine dead G.I.'s 1ight on the hill there. They Tlooked
Tike they Jusl gobt 1eplacements in. They would ¢ome up
walking on the hill like nothing, and the machine gun
on  another hill just cut them all down. When T saw
thew there, T had everyhody hib the ground. We were
crawling up the hill, and a machine gun came right down
begide me, abour gix or eight shells. T said, "Scool
them back down.'"

They were Just waiting for you there?

Yes, but that hroke their bhack for us, actunally,
becaugse we pushed, we athtezcked. TL toeok us about three
days of attacking., We punched through themn. Then, Lt
was a race,

Had Tnchon happenaed?

Tnehon had just happeved. We coordigated tbhe altacks.
When they landed, we attacked

S0, mayhe they were drawing some of theil reserves back
up there?

After that fiigst day, the first three days, no. After
that, when we Finally busted through, we dust did.
They all left, yvou know? We went about forty miles
that day., after we ¢ot oult of there.

Were you on trucks?
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Yes. After we had made the break-out, goft to a road,
and got acrogss the river—--we were back on tihe other

side, «closer to Taegu. T think they were only about
ten ovr fifteen miles from Taegu when we Finally stopped
themn. We got everybody, a whole regiment, outrt first
and third hattallions—-—-T don't know where our second
batlLalion was, but the first and the third
battalions——leapfrogged to each other. We'd go aboul
twenty miiles, and then, rhey would go through us and go
about twenty miles. Then, we'd o twentv miles.

Tiie resisztance there was not too much once yvou busted
Lhrough?

Well, excepl for one spet. EBvery time we went through,
they had the United Nationsg and American flags waving.
We went thirough this one little town, and nohoedy was
out theioe. What had happened, when w¢ were on . .
they put about ileu tanks ou either side of the road,
through the houseg in the back, and hit then. Then,
They came down and walted for their next column to come
through, and they hit them with the tanks. & kid [Ffrom
my platoon got a silver star that night, because he
waent back-~he wasg a bazooka man. They had replaced the
2.36 hazookas with the 3.5 bazooka. That 2.36 milliwe-
ter wasn't very big. It was only about a foot Tong,
and it wasn't very thick. But, Tthat 3.5 c¢entineters
diameter wasg big, and Lt fired a shape charge; 1t would
hit & tank. Tt burat throuygh, and then exploded. The
2.3 would bounce off of 1t.

Sa, you now could deal with the tanks?

We dealt with the tanks, but T reaglized--as I said
before, what happened--when we went up the MBR's, evevry
30 to 50 vards, Lhere's a burned out tank or truck that
the Alr Force had gorten. That was all of the way up
to Seoul. Thea air Force did one bhell of a job on that
over thare! Ounce in a while, you'd come to a btank park
where twelve tanks would be burned out. Our Air Forae
really did a hell of a Job there! There wasn't any-

thing at all. That was flat out! FEvery R0 vards--vou
cdauld bet on ib--that there was a burned ont vehicle,

Do you think without air power, we would have had a
chance to. . . 7

Well, if they would have gotten thei: material down Fo
them—--they were giving ug all that we wanted and morsl
Again, we didu't have any tanks over there to Ffight
them [withl. Tt wasn't supposed to be iftank c¢ountry.

Whose tdea was Lhat, lhe sSub—-Ganctral?
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T don't know. The K-MAG was over there before- the
K~-MAG was the Keorean Military. . . . They trained the
South TKorean aruy. The Russians did  their job of
training the North Koreans, and we did the South Ko-
reans. Of couirse, we let them do . . . their officers
were. . . . When T flrst wenbk over there, they'd
blow a whistle. They'd be in fowx holes. The Souih
Koreans would he in Ffox holes otr in the tvenches. An
officer wvould blow a whiztle and they would all gel up
and shoot. After about three weeks, they stopped lhat.
They just weren't very good.

Say that again about the prisoners.

Neither side, Foxr the first three or four months, 1 ook
prisoners.

Wnhat happensd 1f yvou sui: endevad?

You goft [shot]l. Tt satarted inm July. Tn about the
middie of Inly, we found [that] one whaole platoon of
our Bighth Cavalry had bheen captured., They wirved their
rhumbs  behind fthem and shot them in the back of the
head. Evervbkody felt the same way: "TFf they'rre dgoing
to do Tthat, T'm not going Lo ever surrender." We had
guys, too, that were the sawme way. [They would sayl,
"Oh, T'L1 take the prisoner back." [They'd gelt] &0
vards away, and bang! [ghot him]. [The soldier would
say], "He iried to escape.” It's not good psyvchologi-
cal warfare. We felt Lhe same way, that they shot
prigsoners, and you didn't have a chance. T wag going
to Fight him [Charlie] all the way. 1 wasn't going to
surrendor. T was going to throvy rocks at them 1f T had
Fol Tt didn't matter.

When we did shkart 1aking prigsoners---and we  did--then,
we started collecting. We captutred over five thousand
prigoners, eventually. On the way up--this ig in the
last pari of September -the MSR's.

What's the BMHSR?
Main Supply Roule.

Once vou captured them, did they start sayving, "Tragt
them nice and {urn them around?"

T don't know. T wvreally don't know, hecause what we

did, we would swing up around and come back down. One
group of abonr eight hundreaed prisoners thought we were
Russians coming in to help thew. ‘They came running up

to us. They were real happy, until they found oul thart
we were Americans. Whal we dld, we came up From behind
them. They thought we were Russians coming up to help
them {through. (laughter)
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One of the big sticking points at the Peace Talks was
whather POW's in the South would be forced 1o go back
Lo the North if they didn't want to. T wonder how tLhat
chanyged after.

T had been gone For gquite a while {hen. T've kept up
with L piobably more than anvbody elsge. The Koreans
were the Tlrst, [They were] pretty good sgoldiers.
After a while, they weren't very good at all.

are you Ttalking about the enemy, the North Koreans?

Yes. Yes, the North Koreans were really tough. They
were good soldiers. They would get up and go. That's
a hard thing teo do. Whern you have machine gurg shoot-
ing down at you, it's hard to gelt up and charge up a
hill 1ike that! They claim that they would puwp them
up. T don't kunow whelher Lhail was tvue or not. They
would be on hash of something like Lhat. T don't know.

Do vou  think there might have been some kind of
psychological ploy on their part to make you think that

they were crazy?

i think that the way they did their attack was &

psychological thing, because they would get three,
four, or f£ive hundred of them down bhelow a hill and
start screaming, "Bousai!" That was a wild scream. T

told my clags one day about 1t, and T let out the whole
thing the way they used to do it. They [the class] all
Jumped!

How Jlong is it yoing toe bhe before the Chinese get in?
Did you face any Chinege?

We got busted out of there. We broke Patton's record
of lravel. We weni 115 milez in one eight-hou period
through enemy country, straight through with trucks and
tanks and so forth. We ot up to the 38th [parallel],

and we stopped a 1ittle bir. Then, bang! We c¢rossed
the 38th. We were the first regiment 1o cross  rChe
38Th We went all of the way up Lo Lhe North Rorsan
capital. This was in the last part of September. We

wele 1he lead battalion. Ony battalion was the Jlead
bat talion for the whole Eighth Arnmy, all of the way up
to  the North Rorean capital. Then, the Fifth Cavalry
moved thircugh us, and they took the caplital., We went
down to Chinunampo, which i3 on the other corner. Tt 's
in North Kerea, about wmidway up theve. Ti's a port.
We had turned our artillery in. We had everything in.
We were supposed to march on Noveuwber 11th, in a parade
in Tokyo. We were thele, and we had a great {lime!l
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We'd go  aronnd, and the Farmers there would give us
egygs. T hadn't had an egg or anyvithing like that. One
morning, we went out, and T collected a bunch of aggs.
I scrambled about filfteen eggs and ale them all!

What was the food 1like np wntil that? Were vou on O~
rations?

Yes, we were on gea  rationsg, {Thel C~rations
were . . . the first lhiee or Four davs, you ¢ouid eat
the wvegetables, Then, you counldn't eat those because

you'd get heartburn. Then, they had c¢rackers and Jam.
Then, vou couldn'l eat the crackers and jam. And then,

they had a couple pieces of chocolate in there, This
ig in a dry thing, Phecause you couldn't eat the vegela-
bles or whatever the other was. After about a week or

go  of C rations, all you did was drink coffee 10 wvou
had it. I don't know whelher il was the tension you
were under or what, hot. . .

NDid they set up any field kitehens with het feod, on
occasion?

Not until the winter Llime. We unever had a hot meal
until about Qctober, I think.

as 1t looked like vou guys are ready Lo win the war and
gel out. . . .

Yea! We were vready to go. Our reginent had turned in
the artiliery, and we had made plans for departure.
Then, the Eighty Cavaliy was going ubd the MSR. This
was in  October, befoire the real thing started. The

Chinese caught them on the road.

They had made threats to come in--they said, "Tf you
crogs the 38th, we'll enter the war." How much did you
know about that, and how servious. . . ?

No. We didan't know a thing about i1t! The first thing
we  heard about it was that these crazy Chinese were
riding Thorses up and down! What they did was, on a
mountain pass, they blew up 3 truck right in the front
and blew one in the back. Then, they've viding
horses up and down the damn thiug shooting at people!
They did  a nuwmber iclb on our ®Wighth Cavalry. They
chopped them up. Our Eighth Cavalry wasn't 1lhe same
atter thai. Then, they Jidn't hear anymore about the
Chinese for anotber month, because this was not any-
where close. This was aboutr one hundred miles past the
North RKorean capiial. It isn't even cloge to the North
Korean border.
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After they got hammered, we got everything back again.

We ¢gor our winter c¢lothes there. On November 11, we
attacked a hill. T spent November 11th on a rice patiy
digging in. Every time T got . . . the hills were not
raal biyg, mavhe 6,000 feel, but if you're down iu rice
watl Les, they're Jooking rvight down yvour throat. T
thought T got the million dollar one twice rhere. T

waa leying to dig a fox bole. The ground was a liiile
hard then, hecause it gtavted tov freeze.

T had a bath in Ocviobeir. That was the first batlhh T had
gince T'd been there. T had to c¢vrack ice then to take
the bakth. The ground was havd. Tt hadn't snowed vet,
but the ground was hard and cold. T'd dig a little bit
and get down in a little bhit. Then, T would say,
"That's enough." They had artillery pieces up on the
hiltl, and they fired down at you. T got hit iwice 1n
the shovel. T tock big chuunks out of my shovel. I
thouyght T got hibt twice, hecause it slammed 1nto my
side.

Did vou have a shovel on 1t?

Yeah. I had the shovel on my rifle hag, because nobody
had aany packsg or anvthing left. You carvried stuff on
yvour rifile beli, like vour shovel and trenching tools
and your amminition. We gpent all of that davy. We
Jjumped off at about seven o'c¢lock that day. We Look
the hill the next day. We were laving there and
conldn't move a muscle withoul getting artillery fired

o, They ¢alled 1dnu about five thousand rounds of
artillery umortar. They had aily strikes on that hill.
T watched a B-25 come in--that's a oodiva iwo—motor

bowbear . T watched that Lhing come 1in.
1z that one of ours?

Yas, [1t was] on the hill. I watched them. When they
dropped ihe bhomb, that sucker JTooked like it was going
to come right down on my head! Boom! Tt hit about
three-fourths of the way up the hill., But T'11 tell
you what, it leooked like it was going to land right on
my bead!

How affective were the air sirvikes against the., . . 7
Pretty good, because when we finally made 1t the next
morning, we junped up and they had bleood all ovev the
placae.

Nid they move theil bodies?

Yeah. They 1Llock the bhodies, unless they had then

Lhere. Back on the Nantong River, T spent a night with
about owne hundired dead North Roreans on a hill. They
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had lbeen there for about four on Five davs. In the
suwmmer 1 lme, Lt stioks. Tt s!inks there anyway. T sat
on a C-ration hox. I was eating C-ratiens. T'd kick a
ead and watch the maggots come out of the eyes, nose,
mouth, and the eara. Like a slream of water, they'd bLe
coning out of them.

How did the Chinese and theitr infantry attacks comnpare
to ilhe North Koreans?

They were a 1Little more discipltined. We didn't see any
Chivesge unlil] we got aboul five miles from the. . . .
Then, they atiacked over on the Marines. They didu't
attack us right away. We starled a relreat when they
hit the Marines pretty goeod, and we started going back.
What they were doing wag trying to cirele us at  the
time, Our company pulled a rear guard through our
divigion. We dug fox holes along thisg road an uvup along
the wountainsg. We built fires, because it was cold
then. It was down to thirtyv-five below rero [degrees].
We built fires, and then we marched out. We marched
all that night and all thie next day. We stopped that
night, duyg fox holes, bulilt fiies, and marched out
again. We left right away.

Yo were trying to wmake them think that you were still
there?

Yes. We marched all that night. The nexit morniung, we
got hack to our lines. We jugt plopped in this wvil-
Tage. We gol up, and nohody was there. We guppeosedly
had 1 rmicks coming to pilck us up, and they didn't cone.
our captain was a big tall guy, abont 6 Foot &
[inches]. We were wmarching oul on faol This FB-29
comes  ovelr and dropped a little pavachute wmegsage:
"Gt the fuck out of here! The Chinege arc right on
yvour ass!" Gverybody used to complain about carrvrying
machine gun ammuniticen, your own stuff, and everything
alse. Everyone used to complain about the captain
walking so fast, but not lhat day! (laughte:) Bvery-
bedy was wmoving out!

Finally, we got a whole coupany on a two and one-half
trunk, a Jjeep, and a trajilevr. We diove about eighty
niles. When we goit back to onr lines in Pyongyvang, the
North FKorean capibal, they almost shot us cowming in.
They thouyht we wetre Chinese coming in. We saw hinm
cominyg through. He forgolr to send the trucks. He was
coming with fanks to get ug ont of there We were

L

lucky to gei away from that one!

The Chinese, when they would attack, they would blow
what =@oundaed JTike 1littie toy bugles. They did it
nostly atl night., They never atlacked in the day tiae,
always at night. Wight time was like day time there,
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because we'd have airplanes coming over every ten
winutes, dropping pavachute flareg. They would Tight
up whole wvalleyg. They sLi111 would attack at that
time. They would bhlow the buygles, and they would come
up and attack the hill.

[Nid they use] the same type of charyga?

They wouldn't scream Tike the North FKoreans did,
though. I think they were a Little better disciplined.
These were all experienced troops. They were The ones
that tad Fought dinrving the Chinese wai, when they
fought Chang. They waere all pretty good. When I gotl
hit the second time, we were atbtacking a hill. We were
golng up the finger of the hill. We got almost to the
top of that thing when we started heaving the Chinese
talking. Then, woe started shooting. They had a ma-
chine gun, and they slarvied fiving 1t at  us. The
Finger of the hill went up like that, Just like a path.
A ldlot of us were around that. T had a squad, and T
was up at the front. T saw this hand grenade comne
over, and T hit the ground. Tt landed about fonr Ffeel
behind me. It exploded and sort of inverted me. It
tui ned me back. 1 was numb from the shock of 3¢, from
my knees to myv shoulder. T couldn't feel anything. We
had touns of clothes on. T had eleven suites of pants
on. We had long underwear—--hecause of the cold-~field
pants, aoything you could find to put on. T had anoth-
er hole in my pants, so T stavied Ffeeling arcund in the
back of my leg. T lToeoked and said, "T  got another
hole. " T came out [of the hole]l with blood. T =aid,
"T'in hit. T'm gabting out of here!" I slid down the
hill, and T took a jeep to the back hogpital. T flew
down from “tThelre, to Pusan. ¥rowm Pusan, I flew to
Yokobama Hospital.

How bad was that one? Was it big?

Yes. There's the scar. T don't kuow how bily 1Lhe scar
iz, 1t’s about this biy.

Was it one piece of shiapnel?

No, Theve was about three pieces of shrapnel iu  thers.
Tt gol infected in the heospital. T hwmit my back, too.
My bagk hurt worge than my ieg did.

From the explosion?

Yes, from the explesion. 1 was talking hot baths in the
hospital. They were putting me in a whirlpool type
thing for my back. My leg got infecled, and FEhey
operated  on that. 1 was in the hospital for about a
month and a half.

20



JJ:

CJ:

JJd

T

Jd e

Cid

When was i1 that you were wounded ithe second time?
That was in the Tast part of January.

One thing T wanted to ask vou wasg ahout The cold. How
well- prepared wevre you? Was the supply of winter gear
up Lo whal you wonld expeci?

No, mnot at first. We didn't have any winter gear.
What we had were just the regulaiion things. Then,
thay birought in probably--this is when we came back
Fromm  the Manchuria border. Nobody had anything then,
fi ouy oulfit, until we got back to the 28th parallel.
T hadn't seen an electric light in two months, while we
were  up there. We came hack - in Novewber, we weve in
North Kol ea because we had Thanksgiving dinner in North
Koroea, n about the middle of December we were back to
the 38th. That's when we slaited getting supplies 1in.
We got  shoe packs, hoots wikth twe paiit of bhig thick

gsocks. T hated those suckers. They were Tiue if  vou
stood still, but if you had to mavch in them, yvour feet
would sweatl, and they would rub your feet raw. You

couldn't ever take them off. That's when we got all of
ihe clothes 1like OND'u, field pants, long john's, sweal -
a1, and plle jacketrs We had a field jacket that went
over everything, and we had pile jackets, sweaters, and
O shirts. 7T had a couple of khaki shirts on and long
john ghirts [ond.

How common wag Frost bite?

Nol frogt bite, freeze. Every ona of us got frozen
hands . TF  you touched yonr—-we had tirigger finyar
mittens. They would come up Lo . . . if vou touched
your ¢ifle barrel with your bare hand, it would Just
stick there. It just froze right on ithere. We  had
pile hats, like the Russian d4id, the kind of hats that
came down and tied aver your ears. My toes and fin-
gers. . . . When vyon were fighting, sometimes the
trigger finger miftens didn't work well. You couldn't
get it duloe the trigger of yvour M-1, You had to take
your glove ofF. Tt got c¢old! TL got to be 3I5 o1 40
degraeass haelow e o,

What was fthe allitude awoug (he enlisted men towards
the leadeivaship? How did the offlilcers and the Jeader-
ship in genaral. . . ?

T had probhably about six different platoon Jleaders.
Some  of then were really ygood. Soue [were] average.
The lagt one that 7 had, T wouldn't let him lead ne
acrosgs  Lhe streel. He had been a supply officer back
in the rear, and they screwed up some way; and he got
sent up there., We were golay up a mouniain, and  he
said, "T wanl a diamond Formation." Well, a diamond
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formation going up a mountain . . . when theve's only
tittle trails golng up and your biying teo walk in  that
kind of thing, it wasn't veiry good.

How ofren did you see iansubordinatrion?

Nowne,

Never?

None, never.

[You] just go along with the progiam?

Yes. We had one kid that lived . . . thisg was early 1in
the thing, and he just wasn't psychologically £it to be
[there]. He wenl vunning back, crying to ithe cowmpauy
commander. They sant him down,

What about the overall compand? How did MacArthur coms
across?

T think evergbody thought he was tight. They didn't
think that you could win a war, but nebody thal was
thers wanled fo go into China bto fight it! You had
voutr own little scepnter here. Basically, what
vou're doinyg, v¥ou never saw . . . you didn't walk
around at night, and you didn't walk around in the day
time {too much. People shot yvou 1T vou got up and
walked around. You took care of veour own little squad,
as sguad leader, and vou took care of yvour own scepter.
You wmade sure yvou dida't let your bhnddy down. That
meant  more than anything else, "Don't let  vour buddy
dowr. "

S0, yvou didn't glve a 1ot of thought to the big pio-
ture?

Ne, not the big plctuve. I wanted to get out of there
alive. That was the thing. The cenditions--1it was
aold, T spent mavy--¥o1l ¢go one honr ina a fox hole.
There are two of yvou in a Tox hole, and yvou ¢go one hour
on and one hour off, all night Jong. The only way vou
stayved awake ig to light a cigarette under you coat.
You didn't neceassarily smoke ii; yvou would just hold il
in your hand and let 1t burn down, so if you nod off or
go off, it would fall in vour hand and burn your
hand—--sc that yvou could keep awake. That was a hard
thiung, because you were always tired! You never voally
had anvthing good to eat. You smoked a lot and did a
lot  of c¢liambing, marching np and down mountaing, and
things of that nature. You always carried everything
that wyou had. Yon had mountain bags, in  the winter
time, to sleep iu. You had your two ov three dayvs of

22



JT

CJ:

JJ e

CJ:

Jd e

CJ:

T T .

¢d:

JJ 2

CJe

JJ:

CJ:

JJ

T

Jde

CJ:

Jd

C-rationg. You had your rifle cartridge belt . and
hand grenades. Then, yvou had to helw with mortars or
whatever. That's the higyesi thing. You'vre alwavs
damn tired, always tired!

[There was] not a lot of guality sleep Line?

No There was no yguality slsep lime. When T got  up
hit the second time, T basically weighed about 120
pounds when T got back.

You made it back to Yokohama? Tow long wewre you in the
hospital there?

I was there for about a month and a half.

Ry this Liwme, it's coming uvr on Lhe summer of 1951,
Yes. F went back for abhout a month.

Back to Koirea?

[T wentl back to Korea for about a month.

How were things going then?

T hit it Tucky. They weie making a guard unit back 1in
Secul., so T staved in Ssoul for about a mounth before T
had encugh points to get out. T had a choice of gyoing
hack to the line for two weeks or staving there for
about a montnh and a half. I stayed. T didn't want to
go back and get shot at again, so T stayved! {Jaughter)
I had the choice of doing that, so T staved back there
I ran a platoon at the guard duty on supplies. I had
enough points with the time that I had been there, and
I had two putrple hearis.

Did you get out of the Army while you were still there?
I was due ocut that October.

Did they assign vou te a state. . . 7

They assigned an extra year to yeu, and yvou golb a
Truman's year. Truman froze everybody in  the airmed
services. Ile extended your time for a year. T finally

went back to Girard in August, T think.

In 19517

Yes, 9n 195871, T had a month's leave, and T went down
to Fort Bragg --that's whetre T met my wife -until May of
1952. It was abouft the 22nd of May that we got out.

S0, yvou got out there?
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T got oul down at Fortlt Bragg. T7'11 tell vou whatl; T've
been in for almosl four yvears, and T wanted out in  the
worst way; but vou're caultious. You get paild, and they
give you a reoof and everything., T wanted out, bul it
was a little Funny.

Nid they ofifer any monay for ve ows?

Mo, they weren't.

They welen't encouraging people Lo stay?

T don't think it had come to Lhal, at that point. They
had the draft going. They had all the bodies they
needed, too.

When you were dischaiged, what was vour rank then?

T was a Straiffi Sergeant.

B4, BRH?

[T had] one Jocker.

[Was it] own the top?

No. [T had] three on the top and one on the boltom.

Okay, one on the bobttom, [You welLe an] ES, 1hen.

We  didn'i go All Foice lingo, though. I was a Staff
Sergeant therwos.

Okay. Did voun go to schoel on the Avmy?  f{the Army
paild]

T went to gchool on the G.T. DilTl right at Youngstown
State. T graduated and worked at thal time. T worked
al  the vailyread. T vworked nights apnd weni to school
during the daylime. T gradualted in four yvears.

When did vou graduate?

I graduated in 1956, T went that fall and stavted in
1852,

And then, you. .

fWel] had two kids. [We] had Kurt and CLiTf uvhen we
graduated.

You hecame a teacher then?
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I bacame a teachern, right. Tn 1956 T started at Chan-
pion. [high schooll

You started at Chamnplon, veally? How long did  vyou
teach out there?

I taughl there for Three years, then  came to Girard
[fligh Scheal] for 25 years.

You retived From Ohio and moved to Arizonar?
Right, T retired from Ohio. I was Jusi goinyg Lo  sub-
stitute out  Lhere [Avizonal. I was out there for a

week, and they offered me a full time Jjob.

That's about a2l]1 T really wanted to ask vonu. T appre-
ciate your time. T think it went well. Thank vou.

You're welcome.

END OF TNTERVIEW



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

